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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
FOR THE DISTRICT OF MARYLAND VY 

(Southern Division — Greenbelt) 

William Whittman, 

15 New Plum Tree 

Charles Town, WV 25414 

Plaintiffs 

v. ) Civil Action AG 25 CV 3 1 e 0 

) Jury Demand 

R
e
o
 

ee
 

Ra
t 

National Association of REALTORS® (NAR), 

430 North Michigan Avenue 

Chicago, IL 60611-4087, 
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Virginia REALTORS® (VR), 
10231 Telegraph Road 
Glen Allen, VA 23059, 

ee
 
e
e
 

Northern Virginia Association of REALTORS® (NVAR), 

8407 Pennell Street 

Fairfax, VA 22031, N
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NS
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,
 

Maryland REALTORS® (MR), 
200 Harty S. ‘l'ruman Parkway, Suite 200 
Annapolis, MD 21401, 

Greater Capital Area Association of REALTORS® (GCAAR) 

15201 Diamondback Drive, Suite 100 

Rockville, MD 20850, 
Defendants. 

a
 

Defendants 

COMPLAINT 

Plaintiff Wiliam Whittman, a licensed real estate broker in Maryland, the District of 

Columbia, and Virginia, brings this Complaint against Defendants National Association of 

REALTORS® (“NAR”), Virginia REALTORS® (“VR”), Northern Virginia Association of 

REALTORS® (“NVAR”), Maryland REALTORS® (“MR”), and Greater Capital Area Association 

of REALTORS® (“GCAAR”), seeking treble damages, punitive damages, and declaratory and 

injunctive relief for violations of the Sherman Antitrust Act, 15 U.S.C. §§ 1-7, the Clayton Act, 15 

U.S.C. Jf 12-27, and related state competition and common law, stating as follows:. 
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I. INTRODUCTION 

1. This is an action under the Sherman Antitrust Act, 15 U.S.C. §§ 1-7, the Clayton Act, 15 

U.S.C. §§ 12-27, and related state laws. 

2. Defendants are not mandated by any statute or regulation; no law requires a broker to join 

NAR, VR, MR, NVAR, or GCAAR to practice real estate. Licenses are granted by state 

commissions, not by these private associations. Yet Defendants have entrenched themselves as 

predatory gatckcepers, crippling the very industry they pretend to serve. Instead of facilitaung 

REALTORS®” work, they have metastasized into parasites and leeches, spreading across the nation 

county by county, erecting tollbooths at every turn, and mimicking a cartel of unprecedented scale. 

In doing so, they have inflicted perhaps the greatest corporate harm ever imposed on an American 

profession—an infestation that has drained brokers, destroyed independent firms, and deceived the 

public for decades. 

3. Licensure Authority. Real estate licensure is granted exclusively by state commissions created by 

statute. In Virginia, the Virginia Real Estate Board (Va. Code § 54.1-2106.1) issues licenses; in 

Maryland, the Maryland Real Estate Commission (Md. Code, Bus. Occ. & Prof. § 17-301) regulates 

licensure; and in the District of Columbia, the D.C. Real Estate Commission (D.C. Code § 42- 

2851.05) holds this authority. These governmental bodies—not NAR or its affiliates—confer the 

legal right to practice real estate and establish the education, testing, and professional requirements 

for brokers and agents. 

4. What the Law Actually Requires. To obtain and maintain a license, a broker must comply with 

the statutory requirements of the relevant commission, including pre-licensing education, 

examination, continuing education, and adherence to state real estate laws and regulations. Nowhere 

do these statutes require membership in the National Association of REALTORS® or any local or 

state REALTOR® board. The only reason brokers like Plaintiff are compelled to join NAR, VR, 

MR, NVAR, or GCAAR is because these private associations have seized control of MLS systems, 

lockboxes, and standardized forms, erecting private tollgates where the law requires none—forcing 

brokers to pay repeatedly and still be denied statewide or nationwide access. 

5. Defendants have intentionally and deliberately constructed a predatory scheme for profit, 

catried out in a despicable and heinous manner, by denying brokers and REALTORS® statewide 

and nationwide access even after they have paid dues at the local level that already fund state 

associations and the national umbrella. For example, Plaintiff here pays NVAR, which automatically 

funnels moncy to Virginia REALTORS® and the National Association of REALTORS®, yet he is 
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still blocked from accessing MLS, lockboxes, and forms in neighboring counties within Virginia 

unless he pays again and again to additional local boards. This racket transforms a state leense— 

which by law authorizes practice anywhere in the state—into a worthless scrap of paper confined to 

the narrow county of the local board, nullifying the rights granted by state commissions and 

crippling brokers who have already paid. 

6. Rather than facilitating real estate, Defendants have metastasized into parasites, leeches, and 

cancerous growths feeding on REALTORS® and the American public, devastating the profession, 

destroying Plaintiffs business, and inflicting nationwide harm by charging repeatedly for the same 

access while still denying it. 

7. his abuse goes far beyond duplication; it metastasizes into non-ending local boards where, if 

any single membership were ever justified, it should have sufficed. Instead, brokers are forced to pay 

again and again across countless jurisdictions or else cease doing business in the very states whose 

commissions have licensed them—permitted to operate only in the narrow areas where they have 

paid these predators a fee to do what the state has already authorized them to do. These associations 

protect no one—neither REALTORS® nor clients—as the recent multibillion-dollar settlement has 

proved, exposing them as parasites masquerading as professional facilitators and proving they 

should be dismantled without delay for the protection of both the profession and the public they 

exploit. 

8. Defendants’ predatory abuses have metastasized into a system where almost every small 

jurisdiction, county by county, demands yet another membership fee before a broker can enter a 

property or use the tools necessary to complete a transaction. 

9. A broker licensed by the state to sell anywhere in Virginia, Maryland, or the District of 

Columbia finds his rights crippled and conditioned not on law but on the greed of Defendants— 

who have transformed what should be a facilitative system into a parasitic racket. 

10. What the state freely authorizes, Defendants unlawfully restrict, erecting artificial barriers and 

extracting tribute at every turn, not to protect REALTORS® ot clients, but solely to enrich 

themselves by preventing licensed professionals from doing what they are already legally authorized 

to do. 

11. Plaintiff has suffered millions of dollars in damages as a direct result of Defendants’ unlawful 

restraints of trade, exclusionary practices, and fee structures designed to monopolize access to real 

estate transactions through heinous and predatory schemes that cripple and prevent licensed 
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professionals from exercising the very rights and access that state law has granted them. Defendants 

ought to have facilitated that access rather than obstructed it for greed and profit. 

12. ‘Their scheme represents perhaps the greatest harm an industry has ever suffered and one of 

the most devastating injuries to the American public in the nation’s history. 

13. Plaintiff seeks not only treble and punitive damages, but also structural reform: that one 

REALTOR® membership shall equal full statewide reciprocity, with no duplicative county dues and 

no blocking of access to forms, MLS, or lockboxes. 

14. Defendants’ conduct amounts not merely to antitrust violations but to a nationwide white- 

collar crime against REALTORS® and the American public, carried out under the false banner of 

professionalism—conduct that falls squarely within the prohibitions of the Sherman and Clayton 

Acts. 

15. Plaintiff also brings this action to challenge Defendants’ unlawful and coercive practice of 

intruding into real estate commission disputes — disputes that belong exclusively to real estate 

firms, not individual REALTORS®. 

16. In the real estate industry, earned commissions are by law the exclusive property of licensed 

brokerage firms, not individual REALTORS®. These firms are legally distinct entities with their 

own state-issued brokerage licenses and federal tax identification numbers (see Exhibits 5 & 6). 

17. Firms such as Proplocate Realty LLC are not dues-paying members of Defendants’ 

associations, yet Defendants arrogate to themselves jurisdiction they do not and cannot possess, 

forcing brokers and agents into sham “arbitrations” before panels of unqualified REALTORS® 

under threat of losing MLS, lockbox, and forms access. 

18. By coercing REALTORS® to surrender their firms’ commissions under penalty of 

exclusion, and by consistently ruling in favor of large firms with hundreds of dues-paying members 

against small independents, Defendants have unlawfully interfered with Plainuff’s business, 

destroyed his firm, and usurped authority that belongs only to courts of law and state real estate 

commissions. 

II. JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

19. This Court has subject-matter jurisdiction under 28 U.S.C. § 1337 because the claims 

arise under the Sherman Antitrust Act and the Clayton Act. 

20. This Court also has jurisdiction under 28 U.S.C. J 1337 because this action arises under 

Acts of Congress regulating commerce and protecting trade and commerce against restraints and 
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monopolies, including the Sherman Antitrust Act, 15 U.S.C. §§ 1-7, and the Clayton Act, 15 U.S.C. §§ 

2-27. 

21. This Court has supplemental jurisdiction under 28 U.S.C. § 1367 over related state law 

claims, including unjust enrichment. 

22. Venue is proper in this District under 28 U.S.C. § 1397 because Defendants transact 

business, collect dues, and maintain continuous and systematic contacts affecting commerce in the 

District of Maryland. 

23. Personal jurisdiction is proper because Defendants have purposefully availed themselves 

of the privilege of conducting business in Maryland and the surrounding region, and PlaintifPs 

claims arise directly out of Defendants’ contacts with this forum. 

III. PARTIES 

24. Plaintiff William Whittman is a licensed real estate broker in Virginia, Maryland, and the 

District of Columbia, residing at 75 New Plum Tree, Charles Town, West Virginia. 

25. Defendant National Association of REALTORS® (“NAR”) is a private Illinois non- 

profit trade association with its principal office at 430 North Michigan Avenue, Chicago, Illinois 

60611-4087. Its registered agent for service of process is Katherine R. Johnson, 430 North Michigan 

Avenue, Chicago, Illinois 60611-4087. 

26. Defendant Virginia REALTORS® (“VR”) is a Virginia non-stock corporation with its 

principal office at 10231 Telegraph Road, Glen Allen, Virginia 23059. Its registered agent for service 

of process is Laura Farley, 10231 Telegraph Road, Glen Allen, Virginia 23059. 

70, Defendant Northern Virginia Association of REALTORS® (“NVAR”) is a Virginia 

non-stock corporation with its principal office at 8407 Pennell Street, lairfax, Virginia 22031. Its 

registered agent for service of process is Ryan McLaughlin, 8407 Pennell Street, Fairfax, Virginia 22031. 

81. Defendant Maryland REALTORS® (“MR”) is a Maryland non-stock corporation with 

its principal office at 200 Harry S. ‘Truman Parkway, Suite 200, Annapolis, Maryland 21401. Its 
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registered agent for service of process is Chuck Kasky, 200 Harry S. Truman Parkway, Suite 200, 

Annapolis, Maryland 21401. 

29. Defendant Greater Capital Area Association of REALTORS® (“GCAAR’) ts a 

Maryland non-stock corporation with its principal office at 15201 Diamondback Drive, Suite 100, 

Rockville, Maryland 20850. Its registered agent for service of process is Hdward Krauze, 15201 

Diamondback Drive, Suite 100, Rockville, Maryland 20850. 

IV. FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS 

30. Plaintiff is fully licensed by state real estate commissions to transact business anywhere 

within Virginia, Maryland, and the District of Columbia. 

31. Defendants are not mandated by law; no state statute requites a broker to join NAR, VR, 

NVAR, MR, or GCAAR, as licensure is issued by the Virginia Real Estate Board, the Maryland Real 

Estate Commission, and the D.C. Real Estate Commission. 

32. Defendants are nothing more than private corporations that have entrenched themselves 

as gatekeepers, constructing a tri-layered paywall of local, state, and national dues forcibly extracted 

to unlock MLS, lockboxes, and standard forms. 

33. Without paying these tolls, a licensed broker cannot function in practice, meaning that 

what state law grants, Defendants obstruct—deliberately crippling brokers’ ability to practice 

statewide and strangling competition. 

34, This metastasized cartel has bled REALTORS® dry, enriching itself while leaving 

brokers like Plaintiff unable to expand, hire, or compete fairly. 

35, Defendants are private associations, not public regulators; they operate as non- 

governmental trade associations organized under private corporate law, are not required by any 

statute or regulation for real estate licensure, have no legitimate regulatory authority, yet act as if they 

supersede state licensing boards by conditioning access to essential market tools, and function as a 

self-perpetuating monopoly expanding like a virus into every county and locality, demanding tribute 

at each checkpoint. 

36. Despite Plaintiff's statewide authority, Defendants restrict access to essential tools of the 

profession—including MLS systems, lockbox services (SentriLock), and standard contract forms— 

by conditioning such access on membership dues at all three levels: local, state, and national. 
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37. Exhibit 1 (NVAR 2026 Dues Receipt) demonstrates how Plaintiff is forced to pay 

cumulative fees to NAR, VR, and NVAR totaling $759 annually merely to maintain access to 

essential services in Virginia, yet such payments do not provide access outside NVAR’s narrow 

jurisdictional boundaries. 

38. Exhibit 2(GCAAR 2025 Dues Receipt) demonstrates that Plaintiff is also forced to pay 

duplicative dues to the Greater Capital Area Association of REALTORS® (GCAAR), covering only 

Montgomery County, Maryland, and the District of Columbia, in the amount of $292 annually. 

39. Yet even after paying both NVAR and GCAAR, Plaintiff and his agents cannot access 

forms, lockboxes, or MLS listings just across county lines within the same state unless they pay again 

and again to additional local boards—each requiring the broker of record to join first—thereby 

erecting artificial barriers that drive agents away, collapse transactions, and cripple business growth, 

even though access should be facilitated by dues already paid rather than denied and resold county 

by county. 

40. This duplicative structure is not accidental but is mandated by NAR’s “Three-Way 

Agreement,” under which every local REALTOR® association is chartered by its state association 

and NAR, and every state association is chartered by NAR, so that membership in any local board 

automatically forces payment into the state and national associations. 

41. As a result, Plaintiff is compelled to maintain multiple memberships in multiple 

jurisdictions—NVAR in Virginia, GCAAR in Maryland, and others if he wishes to expand—while 

paying into VR, Maryland REALTORS®, and NAR, creating a nationwide cartel structure that 

extracts fees at every level. 

42. These compulsory memberships are not optional for brokers seeking to compete in the 

modern market, effectively creating a multi-layered toll for doing business in every jurisdiction in 

which a broker is licensed. 

43. Local boards such as NVAR and GCAAR are not neutral arbiters but parasites and 

leeches masquerading as ethics bodies. In practice, they function as kangaroo courts where disputes 

between REALTORS® are systematically resolved in favor of large, well-connected firms such as 

Long & Foster, Century 21, RE/MAX, and Keller Williams, while small and independent brokers 

are penalized, coerced, and stripped of commissions. 

44. These boards abuse their control over MLS, lockboxes, and forms as weapons of 

punishment rather than facilitation, and even overstep by penalizing non-members—all in 

furtherance of Defendants’ cartel scheme. 
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45. This conduct is not isolated but reflects a nationwide pattern that has metastasized for 

decades. Defendants’ structure is nothing less than a white-collar crime syndicate masquerading as 

professional associations—parasites, leeches, and cancerous growths feeding on REALTORS® 

while claiming to protect them. 

46. Defendants’ scheme has unjustly enriched Defendants by billions of dollars, drained the 

livelihoods of countless brokers, and, in Plaintiffs opinion, rises to the level of heinous white-collar 

crime warranting federal investigation. 

47. As a result, Plaintiffs business expansion was stifled; in 2005, Proplocate Realty LLC 

grew to 300 agents, with a firm valuation exceeding $2 million, but agents left when Defendants’ 

rules prevented them from freely accessing MLS and forms statewide without paying duplicative 

membership dues in every jurisdiction. 

48. Plaintiff alleges that but for Defendants’ anticompetitive restraints, Proplocate Realty 

LLC would have expanded nationwide, employing thousands of agents and generating tens of 

millions of dollars in enterprise value. 

49. The same conduct by Defendants has already been exposed and condemned in 

Sizer] Burnett v. NAR, Case No. 4:19-cv-00332 (W.D. Mo.), where a jury found NAR liable for 

antitrust violations in 2023. 

50. The Sherman Antitrust Act, 15 U.S.C. §§ 1-7, prohibits contracts, combinations, and 

conspiracies in restraint of trade and monopolization. The Clayton Act, 15 U.S.C. §§ 12-27, 

including §§ 15 and 26, provides private plaintiffs with the right to recover treble damages, costs, 

and attorney’s fees, and to obtain injunctive relief. Defendants’ conduct violates both Acts. 

51. Beyond these violations, Defendants have also unlawfully extended their claimed 

jurisdiction to real estate commissions—property that legally belongs to firms, not to individual 

REALTORS®. 

a. Commissions are payable only to licensed brokerage entities, not to individual agents 

or brokers. 

b. Real estate firms such as Plaintiffs Proplocate Realty LLC are not dues-paying 
members of NAR, VR, MR, NVAR, or GCAAR. (See Exhibits 1-2) 

c. Accordingly, these associations have no jurisdiction or contractual authority over 

firm commissions. 

52. Despite this, Defendants created a fraudulent system where commission disputes are 

falsely styled as “Realtor A vs. Realtor B” (see Exhibit 3), disguising the reality that commissions arc 

disputes between firms. ‘hey rely on coercion and threats of expulsion—loss of MLS, lockbox, and 
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forms access—to force REALTORS® to comply with board rulings they have no authority to 

make. 

53. Real estate commissions are not the property of individual REALTORS® but of licensed 

firms, which are distinct legal entities with their own state-issued brokerage licenses and IRS tax 

identification numbers (see Exhibit 6). 

54. Checks for commissions are always paid directly to firms, not agents (see Exhibit 4). 

Thus, firms—who are not members of these associations—never consented to arbitration by 

Defendants. 

55. Every such dispute in which Plaintiff's agents participated was decided in favor of larger 

firms with hundreds of dues-paying members, such as Long & Foster, Century 21, RE/MAX, or 

Keller Williams, and against Plaintiff's firm, Proplocate Realty. 

56. Each adverse ruling caused Plaintiffs agents to leave immediately for larger firms, 

devastating Plaintiffs brokerage. 

57. Defendants’ abuse of the statutory term “broker” has been central to this unlawful 

scheme. 

58. While statutes in Virginia, Maryland, and the Distnct of Columbia use the term “broker” 

in connection with commissions, in law and practice this refers to the licensed brokerage entity—not 

an individual REALTOR® who holds a broket’s license. (See Exhibit 6). 

59. ‘he proof is conclusive: every commission check is made payable to the firm (see 

Exhibit 4). 

60. By distorting this definition and coercing REALTORS® under threat of cutting off MLS 

and lockbox access, Defendants have unlawfully arrogated power over firm-owned commissions. 

61.This conduct constitutes coercion, extortion, and tortious interference, and represents a 

nationwide pattern of ultra vires abuse for which Defendants have never had jurisdiction or 

authority. 

COUNTS 

Count I — Violation of Sherman Act § 1 (Unreasonable Restraint of Trade) 

62. Section 1 of the Sherman Antitrust Act, 15 U.S.C. § 7, prohibits every contract, 

combination, or conspiracy in restraint of trade. Courts have held that agreements among 

competitors that erect artificial barriers, fix conditions of market entry, or restrict access to essential 
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facilities are unlawful restraints of trade, whether per se illegal or unreasonable under the rule of 

reason. 

63. Defendants, through their “Three-Way Agreement” and coordinated practices, have 

combined and conspired to restrain trade by conditioning access to MLS systems, lockboxes, and 

standard forms on duplicative local memberships, while denying statewide or reciprocal access even 

after dues are paid. 

64. Brokers like Plaintiff must pay NVAR, GCAAR, VR, MR, and NAR, yet their access 

remains confined to the narrow county jurisdiction of the local board. 

65. This scheme converts what should be a single statewide license into a patchwork of 

attificial toll booths, forcing brokers to pay again and again to multiple county associations merely to 

do what state licensure already authorizes. 

66. Such conduct serves no legitimate pro-competitive purpose, but instead enriches 

Defendants while crippling competition, driving independent brokers out of business, and reducing 

consumer choice. 

67. Plaintiff has been directly injured in his business and property as a result of this unlawful 

restraint of trade, including the loss of agents, collapsed transactions, diminished firm value, and the 

destruction of a once-thriving brokerage enterprise. 

Count II — Violation of Sherman Act § 2 (Monopolization) 

68. Section 2 of the Sherman Antitrust Act, 15 U.S.C. § 2, makes it unlawful to “monopolize, or 

attempt to monopolize, or combine or conspire ... to monopolize any part of the trade or 

commerce among the several States.” To state such a claim, a plaintiff must allege (a) the possession 

of monopoly power in the relevant market and (b) the willful acquisition or maintenance of that 

power through anticompetitive conduct rather than through growth or development as a 

consequence of a superior product, business acumen, or historic accident. 

69. Defendants collectively possess monopoly power over the essential tools of modern real 

estate practice, including multiple listing services (MLS), electronic lockbox systems (such as 

SentriLock), and standardized real estate forms. These tools are indispensable for brokers to 

compete, transact, and represent clients in residential and commercial real estate. 

70. Rather than facilitating access, Defendants have willfully leveraged their control to 

maintain and expand monopoly power by restricting access to these tools on a county-by-county 

basis, even after brokers have paid dues that already flow to the state and national associations. By 
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refusing reciprocity and statewide access, Defendants prevent licensed brokers from competing 

freely, reduce consumer choice, and suppress competition from independent firms. 

71. This monopolistic scheme has directly injured Plaintiff by driving away agents, collapsing 

transactions, and destroying business expansion, while unjustly enriching Defendants through 

duplicative dues. Absent judicial intervention, Defendants will continue to abuse their monopoly 

power to the detriment of REALTORS®, independent brokerages, and the public at large. 

Count III — Violation of Clayton Act § 3 (Unlawful Tying Arrangement) 

72. Section 3 of the Clayton Act, 15 U.S.C. § 14, prohibits tying arrangements in which the sale 

of one product or service is conditioned on the purchase of another, where the effect is to 

substantially lessen competition or create monopoly power. 

73. Defendants have imposed such an arrangement through the “Three-Way Agreement” 

and related practices. The tying product is mandatory membership in local REALTOR® 

associations such as NVAR and GCAAR. The tied products are the indispensable tools of real estate 

practice: MLS access, electronic lockboxes, and standard forms. 

74. Plaintiff does not challenge the requirement that reasonable dues be paid once for these 

tools. The grievance is that even after paying NVAR or GCAAR — dues that already flow in part to 

the state associations (VR or MR) and to NAR — Defendants unlawfully deny access to MLS, 

forms, and lockboxes in neighboring counties or other parts of the state, unless additional 

memberships and duplicate dues are purchased again and again. 

75. This practice forces brokers to buy duplicative memberships far beyond what ts 

necessary, turning what should be a single statewide license into a patchwork of county tollgates. It 

renders meaningless the payments already made to state associations and to NAR, which should 

provide statewide and nationwide reciprocity but instead are used to justify endless local extractions. 

76. By requiring perpetual and duplicative payments while still withholding access, 

Defendants’ scheme substantially lessens competition, burdens independent brokers, drives agents 

from smaller firms, and coerces REALTORS® into paying for memberships they neither need nor 

use simply to avoid exclusion from markets they are otherwise licensed by law to serve. 

77. Plaintiff has been directly injured by this unlawful tying scheme, suffering millions of 

dollars in damages through lost agents, collapsed transactions, diminished firm value, and the 

destruction of his brokerage’s growth. 
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Count IV — Tortious Interference with Prospective Business Advantage 

78. Under common law, tortious interference with prospective business advantage occurs 

when a defendant, knowing of a plaintiffs valid business expectancies, intentionally and improperly 

interferes with those relationships, causing the plaintiff to lose expected economic benefits. See, e.g., 

Murray v. United Food ¢» Commercial Workers Int'l Union, 289 F.3d 297, 303 (4th Cir. 2002) (recognizing 

claim where defendants interfered with plaintiffs’ business relationships and prospective contracts). 

79. Plaintiffs brokerage, PropLocate Realty LLC, built such valid and concrete expectancies 

between 2004 and 2005, growing from nothing to more than 100 producing REALTORS® within 

three months, and to over 300 within a year. PropLocate drew agents from across the three states 

where Plaintiff was licensed — from as far north as Baltimore, Maryland, to as far south as 

Richmond, Virginia, from Annapolis in the east to Winchester and Front Royal in the west. By 2007, 

PropLocate had achieved such success that Fairfax Realty offered $2 million to acquire the firm. 

80. Defendants knew that Plaintiffs brokerage depended on its agents’ ability to access MLS 

listings, electronic lockboxes, and standardized forms — tools that are indispensable for completing 

transactions. Defendants also knew that these agents, though licensed by their state commissions to 

practice statewide, would be unable to function if Defendants restricted their access. 

81. Defendants intentionally and improperly interfered with PlaintifPs business expectancies 

by conditioning access to MLS, forms, and lockboxes not only on membership in one association, 

but on endless duplicative memberships in multiple county-based associations. Even after Plaintiff 

had paid into NVAR and GCAAR, and through those dues funded the state associations (VR and 

MR) and the national association (NAR), Defendants still denied Plaintiffs agents access unless 

additional memberships were purchased for each county where those agents lived or worked. 

82. Because only the broker of record could join on behalf of agents, Defendants’ practices 

made it impossible for Plaintiff's agents to access the tools they needed without Plaintiff incurring 

crippling, duplicative fees. Agents left PropLocate rather than remain bound by a system that 

blocked them from selling where they were licensed to practice. 

82. As a direct result of Defendants’ interference, Plaintiffs brokerage collapsed: 

transactions failed, agents departed, and PropLocate’s fair markct value was destroyed. Plaintiff lost 

not only his prospective $2 million sale to Fairfax Realty, but also the nationwide expansion that 

PropLocate was poised to achieve but for Defendants’ unlawful conduct. 

Count V — Unjust Enrichment 
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84. Under Maryland law, and as recognized in federal courts, a claim for unjust enrichment 

requires that: (1) the plaintiff conferred a benefit upon the defendant, (2) the defendant had 

knowledge of the benefit; and (3) the defendant retained the benefit under circumstances that make 

it inequitable to retain it without payment of value. Hi// v. Cross Country Settlements, LLC, 936 A.2d 

343, 351 (Md. 2007), Schlegel v. Bank of Am, NA, 505 F. Supp. 2d 321, 325 (D. Md. 2007). Coutts 

have further recognized that unjust enrichment may atise where defendants enrich themselves 

through anticompetitive conduct that inflates prices or coerces payments. I” re Processed Egg Prods. 

Antitrust Litig., 851 F. Supp. 2d 867, 913 (E.D. Pa. 2072). 

85. Plaintiff and his agents conferred substantial benefits upon Defendants by paying 

mandatory dues to NVAR, GCAAR, and other local associations, which in turn funded state 

associations (VR, MR) and the national association (NAR). These payments totaled hundreds of 

dollars annually per broker, multiplied across decades and across millions of REAL'ORS® 

nationwide, amounting to billions of dollars in revenue. 

86. Defendants had knowledge of these payments and accepted them, representing that such 

dues were necessary to support access to MLS systems, lockboxes, and standardized forms essential 

for real estate practice. 

87. Yet Defendants retained these payments under circumstances that are inequitable and 

unjust: even after collecting dues at the local, state, and national levels, Defendants refused to 

ptovide statewide or reciprocal access, forcing Plaintiff and others to pay duplicative fees to 

additional county boards or else be excluded from practicing where their state license otherwise 

authorized them to operate. 

88. By retaining the benefits of these payments while simultaneously denying the access they 

should have conferred, Defendants have unjustly enriched themselves at PlaintifPs expense. ‘The 

enrichment is not incidental but structural, designed to maximize Defendants’ revenue while 

crippling brokers and depriving them of the very access they paid for. 

89. Plaintiff has been directly damaged by this unjust enrichment through lost transactions, 

departing agents, reduced firm value, and collapse of business growth, while Defendants continue to 

accumulate billions in ill-gotten gains. Equity demands restitution and disgorgement of the unjust 

profits Defendants have extracted. 

Count VI - Ultra Vires Jurisdiction and Coercive Interference with Firm Property Rights 

Page 13 of 16



Case 8:25-cv-03120-LKG Document1 Filed 09/19/25 Page 14 of 16 

90. Real estate commissions are, by law, the property of licensed brokerage firms, not 

individual REALTORS®. State real estate commissions issue firm licenses (see Exhibit 6), and title 

companies pay commission checks directly to firms (see Exhibit 4). 

91. Real estate firms, including Plaintiffs firm Proplocate Realty, are not ducs-paying 

members of NAR, VR, MR, NVAR, or GCAAR (see Exhibits 1-2). Only individual brokers and 

salespersons are members. Accordingly, Defendants have no contractual or statutory authority over 

firms or their commissions. 

92. Despite this, Defendants have arrogated to themselves unlawful jurisdiction over 

commission disputes between firms. They conceal this overreach by restyling such mattets as 

disputes between REALTORS® (“Realtor A vs. Realtor B”), even when the actual patties in interest 

are distinct brokerage firms (see Exhibit 3). 

93. This practice is ultra vires, unlawful, and constitutes coercive interference with firm 

property rights. Defendants enforce it through threats to cut off MLS, lockbox, and forms access if 

REALTORS® refuse arbitration, thereby coercing agents to surrender commissions belonging to 

their firms under penalty of economic death. 

94. Courts have encountered REALTOR® arbitration disputes before, but the critical 

distinction that commissions belong exclusively to firms — non-members over whom Defendants 

have no jurisdiction — has been obscured by Defendants’ deceptive framing. ‘his systemic 

deception has allowed Defendants to perpetuate their unlawful scheme for decades. 

95. In all three jurisdictions — Virginia, Maryland, and the District of Columbia — the 

statutory term “broker” refers to the licensed brokerage entity, not the individual REALTOR®. 

96. This fact is proven by every commission check in practice: settlement and te 

companies issue earned commission checks only to the licensed firm (see Exhibit 4), never to the 

individual REALTOR®, even if that REALTOR® personally holds a broker’s license. The firm is 

the legal payee, the legal owner, and the only lawful recipient of commissions. 

97. Maryland. Under Md. Code, Business Occupations € Professions § 17-322(b)(2), a real estate 

salesperson may accept compensation only from the real estate broker with whom the salesperson is 

affiliated. In Maryland law, the “broker” referenced here is the licensed brokerage entity, not the 

individual REALTOR®. This is proven in practice by every commission check, which settlement 

companies issue directly to the brokerage firm (see Exhibit 4). 

98. Virginia. a. Code § 54.7-2139(A) mandates that all fees, commissions, or other valuable 

consideration received by a real estate salesperson shall be paid only to the licensed real estate broker 
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under whom the salesperson is licensed. Once again, the statutory “broker” is the brokerage firm 

(e.g., Proplocate Realty LLC), not the individual REALTOR® holding a broket’s license. The 

commission checks confirm this reality beyond dispute (see Exhibit 4). 

99, District of Columbia. D.C. Official Code § 42-2853.196(2) requires that a real estate 

salesperson shall accept compensation for real estate services only from the real estate broker to 

whom the salesperson is licensed. As in Maryland and Virginia, the “broker” here is the licensed 

firm — a separate legal entity with its own brokerage license and tax identification number. 

Commission checks are paid to the firm, never to the individual REALTOR® (see Exhibit 4. 

100. Thus, under each state statute, commissions are the exclusive property of the licensed 

real estate firm — a separate legal entity with its own brokerage license and IRS tax identification 

number (see Exhibit 6). Real estate firms are not dues-paying members of NAR, VR, MR, NVAR, 

or GCAAR. These cartel organizations therefore have no statutory, contractual, or jurisdictional 

authority over commissions. By styling firm-versus-firm disputes as REALTOR®-versus- 

REALTOR® disputes, Defendants deliberately distort the statutory meaning of “broker,” conceal 

their lack of authority, and unlawfully coerce REALTORS® into surrendering firm-owned 

commissions. 

101. Defendants’ conduct has directly harmed Plaintiff: each time such an arbitration was 

forced, Plaintiffs firm lost commissions, agents left to join larger firms favored by Defendants, and 

Plainuff’s brokerage collapsed as a result. 

102. This coercive system is not only anticompetitive but an unlawful usurpation of judicial 

authority, since commission disputes are contract and property matters to be decided only by courts 

of law or, in limited contexts, state real estate commissions — never by private associations of 

REALTORS®. 

VI. PRAYER FOR RELIEF 

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff respectfully requests that the Court: 

A. Award treble damages under 15 U.S.C. § 15 in the amount of $50,000,000, or such greater or 

lesser sum as the jury may determine is just and proper; 

B. Award punitive damages in the amount of $2,000,000,000, to punish Defendants’ willful, 

malicious, decades-long predatory conduct — a metastasized cancer and parasitic leeching 

scheme that represents the longest and largest financial injury to REALTORS® and the 

American public in history; 
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Enter declaratory and injunctive relief under the Sherman Act, the Clayton Act, and state 

teal estate statutes, requiring that one REALTOR® membership shall equal full statewide 

reciprocity, eliminating duplicative county dues, prohibiting blocking of access to MLS, 

lockboxes, and forms, and ensuring REALTORS® may practice anywhere within their 

licensed state as authorized by law; 

Declare unlawful and enjoin permanently Defendants’ ultra vires practice of asserting 

jurisdiction over real estate commission disputes belonging to licensed brokerage firms, 

which are not dues-paying members of Defendants’ associations and over whom 

Defendants have no statutory or contractual authority; 

Prohibit Defendants from conditioning REALTORS®” access to MLS, lockboxes, and 

forms on forced submission of firm commission disputes to their boards or so-called 

“arbitration” panels; 

Order restitution of commissions wrongfully diverted through such unlawful “arbitrations” 

in favor of larger firms and against Plaintiff, and restore commissions to the firms to whom 

they legally belong under state law; 

Award Plaintiff costs of suit, including reasonable attorneys’ fees and expert witness fees as 

permitted by law; and 

Grant such other and further relief as the Court deems just and proper. 

Respectfully submitted, 

/s/ William Whittman 

15 New Plum Tree 

Charles Town, WV 25414 

Tel: (202) 391-5582 

Pro Se Plaintiff 

Witham, oltiny 

lo Le 
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9/15/25, 11:18 AM Yahoo Mail - NVAR 2026 Dues Receipt 

NVAR 2026 Dues Receipt 

Fram: receipts@nvardues.cam 

To: samigjoka@yahoo.com 

Date: Monday, September 15, 2025 at 10:59 AM EDT 

Dues - Receipt 

William Whittman Order Number: 50282321 

Proplocate Realty Order Date: 9/15/2025 

202-691 S562 - NRDS #: 846513258 
: ak Payment MasterCard 

Information: XXXKXXK XXKX XKXXXK 7521 

Order #50282321 9/15/2025 

Description Amount 

Lockbox Service Fee 2026 $10.00 

VR State Association Dues 2026 $203.00 

NAR National Association Dues 2026 $201.00 

NVAR Local Membership Dues 2026 $345.00 

Total $759.00 

Comments: | 

If you have questions about your dues payment, please contact the membership department at 
membershio@NVAR.com, or at one of the numbers listed below: 

Main: 703.207.3200 
Membership: 703.207.3256 

= The NAR total of $201 includes the mandatory 2026 annual dues ($156) and a mandatory assessment 

for the Consumer Advertising Campaign ($45). This assessment is billed to all active Realtor® and 

Realtor® Associate members. 
= The annual lockbox service fee of $10 is due on September 30, 2025 for authorized users of 

SentriLock Services. After October 30, 2025, the SentriLock service is subject to deactivation. 
= Dues payments made by credit card on this site will appear on your credit card billing statement under 

the name REALTOR Association/MLS. 

- PLEASE READ - 

about:blank 113
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1. DUES ARE PAYABLE annually and are due on September 30, 2025 for all members. Dues are not 
refundable. After September 30, 2025 a $75 late fee will be added to your bill. 

2. TERMINATION OF MEMBERSHIP - If dues, fees, fines, and other assessments are not paid by 
October 30, 2025, membership will terminate and a $50 reactivation fee will be added to your bill. 

3. REINSTATEMENT OF MEMBERSHIP - If a member is billed for 2026 dues and membership 

terminates due to nonpayment, the full year's dues amount plus the $75 late fee and $50 reactivation 
fee must be paid if a member seeks to be reinstated at any time in the 2026 dues year. 

4. DUES ARE NOT DEDUCTIBLE as a charitable investment for federal income tax purposes. However, 
such fees may be deductible by members under other provisions of the IRS Code, such as an 
ordinary and necessary business expense. Please consult your tax advisor on this issue as well as 
Item # 5 below . 

5. LOBBYING EXPENSE NON-DEDUCTIBILITY - Certain provisions of the current tax law regarding 
lobbying expenses limit the extent to which your national, state, and local dues will be deductible as a 
business expense. The estimated non-deductible portion of your dues is as follows: 

Non-Deductible Estimated Lobbying Expense Percentage Portion 

National Association of Realtors® (35% of $156 Annual Dues) $55.00 

Virginia Realtors® (12% of $203 Annual Dues) $24.36 

Northern Virginia Association of Realtors® (0.5% of $345 Annual Dues) $1.73 

Total Non-Deductible Portion of Dues $81.09 

Note: The above NVAR percentage of estimated lobbying expenses does not include NVAR's efforts 
to affect local legislation. Local legislation lobbying expenses are exempt fram the non-deductibility 
provision of the current tax law. 

6. NORTHERN VIRGINIA REALTORS® POLITICAL ACTION COMMITTEE VOLUNTARY 
INVESTMENT - Investments to NVRPAC are voluntary and are used for political purposes; they are 
not deductible for federal or state income tax purposes. Members may invest more or less than the 
suggested amount and may refuse to invest without reprisal. The National Association of 
REALTORS® or any of its state or local associations will not favor or disfavor any member because of 
the amount invested. NAR has established state Federal RPAC Disbursement Allocations based on 
anticipated National RPAC needs. Thirty percent of all Major Investor contributions are sent to NAR to 
be applied to the Federal RPAC Disbursement Allocation and are charged against the limits under 52 
U.S.C, 30116 with the remaining allocated to NVRPAC (40%) and RPAC of Virginia (30%) for state 
and local usage. Decisions regarding RPAC investments to meet the Federal RPAC Disbursement 
Allocation will be made throughout the fundraising year. The investor certifies that they are at least 18 
years old and are making this contribution with their own personal funds - not those of another person 
or entity, nor are they a foreign national or federal contractor. 

__ Announcements! 

NVAR Legal Hotline 
Just one of the many NVAR Benefits - Log in as a member 
at www. NVAR. corm to have your legal questions answered. 

See Upcoming Classes & Events at NVAR > 

NORTHERN VIRGINIA ASSOCIATION OF REALTORS® 

about:blank
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8407 Pennell Street, Fairfax, VA 22031 
Phone: 703.207.3256 | Fax: 703.207.3275 | membership@nvar.com 
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Greater Capital Area Association of REALTORS ‘es x 2D 
Ste 100 2 

15201 Diamondback Dr 

Rockville MD 20850 

Office Phone: (301) 590-2000 

William Whittman Receipt Date 12/30/2024 
Proplocate Realty LLC Receipt # 916079 
Ste 205 Member # 42169 
701 West Broad St Office # 14905 
Falls Church VA 22046 

Item Unit Extended 

Qty Code Description Price Amount Taxable 

Invoice# 1468677 10/01/2024 
1 G2513 GCAAR Secondary DR Dues 20: 292.000 292.00 

Invoice Total 292.00 
Amount Applied 292.00 

Amount Due 0.00 

Payment Type/Number Total Applied This Receipt 292.00 

Master Card Total Previous Payments 0.00 
RRR IRIE T ED 4 Balance Due on Above Invoice(s) 0.00 
80305620 

PLEASE NOTE: All store sales are final. 

Page: 1
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CK 

REALTORS’ 
Advancing Standards of Excellence in Reai Estate 

Award of Arbitrators: A-11-08 

The undersigned, who were duly appointed as the Hearing Panel to hear and determine an 
equitable resolution of a business dispute as defined in Article 17 of the Code of Ethics of the 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF REALTORS® or as further set forth in the professional standards 
procedures as contained in the bylaws of the Richmond Association of REALTORS® and the 
Northern Virginia Association of REALTORS® [“Boards”] and existing between REALTOR® 
Harold McNamara of McNamara Realty and REALTOR® William Whittman (aka Sami Gjoka) of 
PropLocate Realty, do hereby certify that on the 6th day of August, 2012, at the hour of 10:00 
a.m., we proceeded to hear the evidence of the parties to the said dispute after giving 21 days 
notice to each of the parties in writing of the time and place of our first meeting; and, having heard 
all the evidence, proof, and arguments of the respective parties to the arbitration, a majority of the 
panel does find and judge that there is due and owing from the said REALTOR® William 
Whittman of PropLocate Relaty to the said REALTOR® Harold McNamara of McNamara Realty 
the sum of Twelve Thousand Six Hundred Ninety and 00/100 Dollars ($12,690.00) which sum it is 
ordered that said REALTOR® William Whittman of PropLocate Realty pay to said REALTOR® 
Harold McNamara of McNamara Realty within 10 (ten) days or, in the case of a procedural 
review, deposit the funds with the Board Secretary or Executive Officer to be held in a special 
Board escrow account maintained for this purpose. Failure to satisfy the award or the deposit of 
funds with the Board within this time period may constitute a violation of a membership duty and 
may subject the member to disciplinary action at the discretion of the Board of Directors. The 
award becomes final twenty (20) days from the date this award notice is mailed absent a 
procedural review request being filed. 

The deposits of the parties shall be used by the Secretaries of the Boards to cover the costs of 
arbitration as it may be required. Any portion not used specifically to cover the costs of the 
arbitration shall go into the general operating funds of the Boards. In this matter, the panel 
directs that the Richmond Association of REALTORS® refund the requestor’s arbitration deposit 
in the amount of Five Hundred and »/00 Dollars ($500.00). 

Requests for procedural review of the arbitration hearing procedures must be filed in writing with 
the Board President within twenty (20) days after the award has been served on the parties. The 

dural review should cite the alleged procedura! deficiencies or other irregularities 

—)—— , Chairperson Laura Yi 
re ws ie 

WA LE — , Panel Member Susan Blackwell 
Signature vw 

ay der 

| Vartyt f a , Panel Member Michele Forbes 
Signature 

3 {> ‘ 

Aguas ~o we Cetin! , Panel Member Joyce Burkeen 
Signature ~~ 

— 

Signature 

a 

Zz, a , Panel Member David Snipes 

e 
8975 Three Chopt Road @ Richmond, Virginia 23229 ¢ Phone (804) 422-5000 ¢ Fax (804) 422-5060 

www.RARealtors.com
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RICHMOND ASSOCIATION OF 
———= Lo 

REALTORS’ 
Advancing Standards of Excellence in Real Estate 

CONFIDENTIAL 

TO: REALTOR® Harold McNamara 
McNamara Realty 

REALTOR® Sami Gjoka/William Whittman 
PropLocate Realty 

FROM: P. Maxwell 

Professional Standards Adminstrant 

DATE: August 6, 2012 

SUBJECT: Award of the Arbitrators for Case # A-11-08, McNamara v. Whittman 

Attached is the Award of the Arbitrators in the case of Case # A-11-08, REALTOR® Harold 
McNamara of McNamara Realty v. REALTOR® Sami Gjoka/William Whittman of PropLocate 
Realty which was heard on August 6, 2012. 

The award has been signed by the arbitrators or a majority of them and, when served on each of 
the parties, shall be valid and binding and not be subject to review or appeal. Notwithstanding the 
foregoing, a party to an arbitration proceeding may appeal to the Boards of Directors only with 
respect to such alleged irregularities occurring in the conduct of the proceeding as may have 
deprived the party of fundamental “due process.” 

Within ten (10) days following receipt of the award, REALTOR® Sami GjokaWiiliam Whittman, 
PropLocate Realty, must either (1) pay the award to the party named in the award or (2) deposit 
the funds with the Richmond Association of REALTORS® to be held in a special Association 
escrow account maintained for this purpose. Failure to satisfy the award or to deposit the funds 
with the Association within this time period may be considered a violation of a membership duty 
and subject the member to disciplinary action at the discretion of the Board of Directors of the 
Northern Virginia Association of REALTORS®. 

The parties have twenty (20) days (August 27, 2012) from the date of this award to request 
procedural review of the arbitration hearing procedure by the Boards of Directors. If no such 
review is requested, the award becomes final and binding following the twenty (20) day period. 
However, if procedural review is requested, the award is not considered final and binding until a 
joint Panel of Directors appointed by the Association Presidents has concluded that the hearing 
was conducted in a manner consistent with the Association's procedures and the parties had 
been afforded due process. The procedural review request must be accompanied by a deposit in 
the amount of $500.00 made payable to the Richmond Association of Realtors®. 

ce: Hearing Panel and NVAR Board Counsel 

Enclosures: Award of Arbitrators 
Procedural Review Request Form (REALTOR® Gjoka/Whittman) 

ise f 

8975 Three Chopt Road ¢ Richmond, Virginia 23229 @ Phone (804) 422-5000 @ Fax (804) 422-5060 
www.RARealtors.com 

, 
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101532 © 

Date: 07/38/2025 

a i 
PAY $20,500.00 i 

4 
Void Alter 90 Days. 

TO THE 
ORDER OF 

MEMO 
PROPERTY: 

ZENT PRINTED WITH MIC ROPRINTED BC ¢ ON FRONT AND SECUTPE DOCUMENT WATERMARKS ON BACK . HOLD AT ANGLE TO VIEW. 

. . CLA Company, inc. * MVB BANK, INC. 424887 
se 9210 Corporate Bivd FAIRMONT, WY 

L. A Suite 150 RESA VA Escrow Account 
- oh a Hise w PG x Rockville, MD20850 

ee. a Date: 05/27/2025 
Order Number: VA-25-26497 

PAY Seventeen Thousand Seven Hundred And 00/100 $17,700.00 

‘Void After 60 fhays 

TOTHE — Proplocate Realty 
ORDER OF 70 yWest Broad Street 205 dE 

Falls Church, VA 22046 ae * 

: WA 
| MEMO Listing Agent Carmmission all 

WEZLBH? LOSRSOLSSIE be6635" 

114895, 

Date: 06/23/2025. 

$13,940.00 

Waid Atte? #0 Days 

one ae | 

: i eer een So ms once cont 

: WRALBUS" HOSALORLGA 852772959" _
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COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA 
STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION 

Office of the Clerk 

August:25, 2023 

WILLIAM WHITTMAN 
701 WEST BROAD STREET #205 
Falls Church, VA, 22046 - 0000 

RECEIPT 

RE: PROPLOCATE REALTY L.L.C. 

ID: ~~ $1327818 ~ _ BO 7 

FILING NO: 2308256229055 

WORK ORDER NO: 202308244143811 - 

Dear Customer: 

This is your acknowledgement for filing a statement of principal office change for a limited 
liability company with this office on August 25, 2023. 

The effective date of the change is August 25, 2023. 

If you have any questions, please call (804) 371-9733 or toll-free 1-866-722-2551. 

Sincerely, 

Bernard J. Logan i? 
Clerk of the Commission 

Delivery Method: Mail 

TYLER BUILDING, 1300 EAST MAIN STREET, RICHMOND, VA 23219-3630 @ WEBSITE: scc.virginia.gov
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Department of the Treasury ; ; 
Internal Revenue Service Date of this notice: JAN. 10, 2005 
PHILADELPHIA PA 19255-0038 Number of this notice: 277 

Taxpayer Identification Number: 75-3167684 

Form: Tax Period: 

-— ° For assistance you may call us at: 

— 1-800-829-0115 

PROPLOCATE REALTY L LC 
WHITTMAN WILLIAM SINGLE MBR 
3800 POWELL LN UNIT 726 
FALLS CHURCH VA 22041-3667766 

ha 

_—~ WE HAVE APPROVED YOUR FORM 6632-ENTIFY CLASSIFICATION ELECTION — ~~ 
WE HAVE APPROVED YOUR ELECTION AS A DOMESTIC ELIGIBLE ENTITY TO BE CLASSIFIED: AS 
AN ASSOCIATION TAXABLE AS A CORPORATION. THE EFFECTIVE DATE OF THIS ELECTION IS 
SEP. 09, 2004. 

If you have any questions about this notice, please call us at the number shown above. If you 
prefer you can write us. If you write, please include the bottom part of this notice. Please provide 
your telephone number and the best time for us to call if we need to reach you. 

Helpful Hint: For faster service, try calling us any day except Monday when our call volumes are highest. 

Thank you for your cooperation. 

Keep this part for your records 

Return this para us wit mquity ~~ Gp-277 ° 

Your telephone number Best time to call SB 
( ) al Taxpayer Identification Number. 75-3167684 

Internal Revenue Service PROPLOCATE REALTY L LC 
PHILADELPHIA PA 19255-0038 WHITTMAN WILLIAM SINGLE MBR 

3800 POWELL LN UNIT 726 
Daal Daleaealadelaleatalll ical accnallabalsbenll FALLS CHURCH WA = 22041-3667766
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Realtor vs Firm Separate and distinct Licenses EX 6 

COMMONWEALTH of VIRGINIA. 
— Department of Professional and Occupational R ation Lp: 90 Mayan aie, See Soe VA a a 

* 

REAL ESTATE BOARD - PRINCIPAL BROKER LICENSE 
POST IN A CONSPICUOUS PLACE 

THIS LICENSE TO SE IN GUSTODY aig CONTROL OF PRINCIPAL BROKER 

WILLIAM HOTT MAN 
SAMI GJOKA WHITTMAN 
PROPLOCATE REALTY LLC ROR ROK G 
PROPLOCATE REALTY a 
701 W BROAD ST STE 205 
FALLS CHURCH, VA 22046 

wisssae hipbidiliiwinpannaaae ; et 

eee at REVERSE SIDE FOR PRIVILAGES ANG wie TRUCTIONS) 
* OPORLIC (02720077) 

Vs 

aaa sy 

oe COMMONWEALTH of VIRGINIA 
roe me Department of Professional and Occupational ‘Regulation 

f ExPIRESON | 9960 Mayland Drive, Suite 400, Richmond. VA 25233 NUMBER ‘eeummanen ~ seTetephone: (908) 367-8500 “ d26008873 "* 

7 REAL ESTATE BOARD - FIRM LICENSE 
| _ POST IN A CONSPICUQUS PLACE i 

THIS LICENSE TO BE IN CUSTODY AND CONTROL OF PRINCIPAL BROKER 

PROPLOCATE REALTY LLC. ~ 

701 W BROAD ST STE 205 Uses 
FALLS CHURCH, VA 22046 

4 a ae -| 

{SEE REVERSE SIDE FOR PRIVEEGES AND INSTRUCTIONS} DPOR-LIC 202/209?) 

Status tan be verified at http-Awuew.dper.virginie.gor 
ama 

Page 1 of 2
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EX 6 Realtor vs Firm Separate and distinct Licenses 

* » * 

The Department of Licensing and Consumer Protection grants this license, in support of and under the authority af the: 

District of Columbia Real Estate Commission 

Te: WILLIAM WHITTMAN 

Asa: Real Estate Broker 

PROPLOCATE REALTY LLC 
FOL West Browl Sreet, 208 
Falls Church, VA 22046 

License Number: Issuance Date: Expiration Date: 
BRORIGL TES Lisw200s yeew2? 

Tiffany Crowe 
Director 

Department of Licensing and Consumer Protection 

Vs 

PROPLOCATE REALTY, LLC 

License Number: 

REO?PE346 1789 

license Type: Rea: Estale 

Organization 

Initial Issue Date: 11/19/2004 

Effective Date: 03/01/2023 

Page 2 of 2 

license Status: Active 

Expiration Date: 02/28; 
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The JS 44 civil cover sheet an 

CIVIL COVER SHEET 
efemn: 0) ice e] or su) r nd sefPice of pple phe 8 requii aes Co My 

provided by local rules of vous eo by PF Looe of moe yintentasS v7 OGL ‘or free Othe a eles pele 1 
purpose of initiating the civil docket sheet. (SEE INSTRUCTIONS ON NEXT PAGE OF THIS FORM.) 

I. (a) PLAINTIFFS 

William Whittman 

(b) County of Residence of First Listed Plaintiff 
(EXCEPT IN U.S. PLAINTIFF CASES) 

(c) Attorneys (Firm Name, Address, and Telephone Number) 

DEFENDANTS 

NAR, VR, GCAAR, MR & GCAAR 

County of Residence of First Listed Defendant 

(IN U.S. PLAINTIFF CASES ONL¥) 

NOTE: INLAND CONDEMNATION CASES, USE THE LOCATION OF 
THE TRACT OF LAND INVOLVED. 

Attorneys ([f Known) Ze 

Il. BASIS OF JURISDICTION (Piace an “x” in One Box Only) 

oh U.S. Government 

Plaintiff 

[2 US. Government 
Defendant 

WI. CITIZENSHIP OF PRINCIPAL PARTIES (Ptace an “x” in One Box for Plaintiff 
(For Diversity Cases Only) and One Box far Defendant) 

[zJ3 Federal Question PTF DEF PTF DEF 
(U.S. Government Not a Party) Citizen of This State Oo 1 | 1 Incorporated or Principal Place Oo 4 oO 4 

of Business In This State 

(14 Diversity Citizen of Another State C12 LD 2 Incorporated and Principal Place [] 5 []5 
(Indicate Citizenship of Parties in Item III) of Business In Another State 

Citizen or Subject of a O13) CJ 3 Foreign Nation Oe (Cs 
Foreign Country 

110 Insurance 

120 Marine 
130 Miller Act 
140 Negotiable Instrument 

[SO Recovery of Overpayment 

& Enforcement of Judgment) 

151 Medicare Act 

152 Recovery of Defaulted 
Student Loans 

(Excludes Veterans) 
(J 153 Recovery of Overpayment 

of Veteran’s Benefits 
[7] 160 Stockholders’ Suits 

190 Other Contract 
195 Contract Product Liability 
196 Franchise 

220 Foreclosure 
230 Rent Lease & Ejectment 

240 Torts to Land 

245 Tort Product Liability 

290 All Other Real Property 

TV. NATURE OF SUIT (Piace an “x” in One Box Only) 
= 

PERSONAL INJURY 

[_] 310 Airplane 
[|_| 315 Airplane Product 

PERSONAL INJURY 
(21365 Personal Injury - 

Product Liability 

| ]625 Drug Related Seizure 
of Property 21 USC 881 

[_]690 Other 

375 False Claims Act 
376 Qui Tam (31 USC 

3729%a)) 
5 

Liability (2) 367 Health Care/ |] 400 State Reapportionment 
|_] 320 Assault, Libel & Pharmaceutical 410 Antitrust 

Slander Personal Injury 820 Copyrights 430 Banks and Banking 

|] 330 Federal Employers’ Product Liability 830 Patent 450 Commerce 
Liability 368 Asbestos Personal 835 Patent - Abbreviated 460 Deportation 

|] 340 Marine Injury Product 470 Racketeer Influenced and New Drug Application 
[_] 345 Marine Product Liability 840 Trademark Corrupt Organizations 

Liability PERSONAL PROPERTY [ 880 Defend Trade Secrets 480 Consumer Credit 
[_] 350 Motor Vehicle H 370 Other Fraud 710 Fair Labor Standards Act of 2016 (15 USC 1681 ur 1692) 
[_] 355 Motor Vehicle 371 Truth in Lending Act 485 Telephone Consumer 

Product Liability oO 380 Other Personal [ }720 Labor/Management Protection Act 

|] 360 Other Personal Property Damage Relations 861 HIA (1395ff) 490 Cable/Sat TV 
Injury (1385 Property Damage 862 Black Lung (923) 850 Securities/Commodities/ 740 Railway Labor Act 

751 Family and Medical 

Leave Act 
[_]790 Other Labor Litigation 

791 Employee Retirement 

Income Security Act 

362 Personal Injury - 
Medical Malpractice 

Product Liability 863 DIWC/DIWW (405(g)) 
864 SSID Title XVI 
865 RSI (405(g)) 

Exchange 

890 Other Statutory Actions 

891 Agricultural Acts 
893 Environmental Matters 
895 Freedom of Information 

Act 

896 Arbitration 
899 Administrative Procedure 

Act/Review or Appeal of 

|_| 440 Other Civil Rights 

441 Voting 

442 Employment 

443 Housing/ 

Accommodations 
445 Amer. w/Disabilitics - 

Habeas Corpus: 
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

Wiliam whttror ™ 

MER Ht 2Z 

Defendant(s) 

Civil Action No. "LAG 25C0V3120 
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SUMMONS IN A CIVIL ACTION 

To: (Defendant’s name and address) 

CCAM aon fbsck We tf 0 © 
K eC ae vu) Be 

A lawsuit has been filed against you. 

oeh @ 

Within 21 days after service of this summons on you (not counting the day you received it) — or 60 days if you 
are the United States or a United States agency, or an officer or employee of the United States described in Fed. R. Civ. 
P. 12 (a)(2) or (3) — you must serve on the plaintiff an answer to the attached complaint or a motion under Rule 12 of 

the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure. The answer or motion must be heft or plaintiff's attorney, 

whose name and address are: Ww CL; 4 nn. lw ef IN ph — 

Fol W. Pror pot ) 
Falls" Chwrl 

If you fail to respond, judgment by default will be entered against you for the relief demanded in the complaint. 

You also must file your answer or motion with the court. 

CLERK OF COURT 

Date: a ee 

Signature of Clerk or Deputy Clerk
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AO 440 (Rev. 06/12) Summons in a Civil Action 

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
for the 

WILel Ae WHIT Pp 

Plaintiff(s) 

MAL ok of 

Defendant(s) 

Civil Action No. ug 2 5 CV 3 1 2 0 
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SUMMONS IN A CIVIL ACTION 

To: (Defendant's name and address) | Can f Re > Cfrts 

Loo Hann Oo, &. ve farkwer #900 
Annapoas!, MO Lo yo! 

A lawsuit has been filed against you. 

Within 21 days after service of this summons on you (not counting the day you received it) — or 60 days if you 
are the United States or a United States agency, or an officer or employee of the United States described in Fed. R. Civ. 
P. 12 (a)(2) or (3) — you must serve on the plaintiff an answer to the attached complaint or a motion under Rule 12 of 
the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure. The answer or motion must be served on the plaintiff or plaintiff's attorney, 

whose name and address are: ~ n ‘aS awe 

POP Bigs nied fe. HE ZOOS 

z G6 
If you fail to respond, judgment by default will be entered against you for the relief demanded in the complaint. 

You also must file your answer or motion with the court. 

CLERK OF COURT 

Date: : 
Signature of Clerk or Deputy Clerk
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
for the 

WW Chan Wht timers 

Plaintiff(s) 

V;. 

Wak ef 
Defendant(s) 

Civil Action No. KG 25C0V3120 

SUMMONS IN A CIVIL ACTION 

To: (Defendant’s name and address) 

NYE 2 nee ot 
Fain fan Vin 2203] 

A lawsuit has been filed against you. 

Within 21 days after service of this summons on you (not counting the day you received it) — or 60 days if you 

are the United States or a United States agency, or an officer or employee of the United States described in Fed. R. Civ. 
P. 12 (a)(2) or (3) — you must serve on the plaintiff an answer to the attached complaint or a motion under Rule 12 of 
the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure. The answer or motion must be served on the plaintiff or plaintiff's attorney, 

whose name and address are: Y/ ‘ a om in f wal. — 

Pol W/. Brood 3t FLZ99 
Falls Church Vi 2046 

If you fail to respond, judgment by default will be entered against you for the relief demanded in the complaint. 

You also must file your answer or motion with the court. 

CLERK OF COURT 

Date: : 
Signature of Clerk or Deputy Clerk
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
wen Ltt: maw for the 

Is ar. Pham tise #20? 
Chars Tawn , YY 

v 

Plaintiff(s) 

MAK et “ea Civil Action No. ‘UG 25 CV3 1 20 

e
e
 

Defendant(s) 

SUMMONS IN A CIVIL ACTION 

To: (Defendant's name and address) We ft , n 1 Ce Re > CLa29 

loa Telegraph Kk 

A lawsuit has been filed against you. 

Within 21 days after service of this summons on you (not counting the day you received it) — or 60 days if you 
are the United States or a United States agency, or an officer or employee of the United States described in Fed. R. Civ. 
P. 12 (a)(2) or (3) — you must serve on the plaintiff an answer to the attached complaint or a motion under Rule 12 of 

the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure. The answer or motion must be served on the plaintiff or plaintiff's attorney, 

whose name and address are: Li ZLe0m ult ag es 

Fol W Broek sf F209 
calls Chir VA 

22046 

If you fail to respond, judgment by default will be entered against you for the relief demanded in the complaint. 
You also must file your answer or motion with the court. 

CLERK OF COURT 

Date: ee 
Signature of Clerk or Deputy Clerk
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
Ww | cam wht} wor for the 

(S New Plun Tree $L0F 
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Plaintiffi s) 

WAR && of 
Civil Action No. L4G 2 5 CV 3 { 2 0 
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Defendant(s) 

SUMMONS IN A CIVIL ACTION 

Vationol “A894. aman n {Lea bbe 9 (WAK ) 
Micd! 

VE ete | 1805 bil GOS? 
A lawsuit has been filed against you. 

Within 21 days after service of this summons on you (not counting the day you received it) — or 60 days if you 
are the United States or a United States agency, or an officer or employee of the United States described in Fed. R. Civ. 
P. 12 (a)(2) or (3) — you must serve on the plaintiff an answer to the attached complaint or a motion under Rule 12 of 
the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure. The answer or motion must be served on the plaintiff or plaintiff's attorney, 
whose name and address are: esa: WLC ORM LEHITTHAK 

qo, w Kroedk $4 wt 
Falls C. 

eps 
If you fail to respond, judgment by default will be entered against you for the relief demanded in the complaint. 

You also must file your answer or motion with the court. 

CLERK OF COURT 

Date: _ 
~ Signature of Clerk or 1 Deputy Clerk


